
NOTICE OF MEETING 

A REGULAR MEETING  

OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE 

INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL  
COMPOSTING AUTHORITY 

WILL BE HELD ON 
MONDAY, August 2, 2021 

10:00 A.M. 

TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY FOR THE GENERAL PUBLIC: In all 
efforts to prevent the spread of COVID-19, until further notice, the Inland Empire 

Regional Composting Authority will be holding all Board meetings by 
teleconferencing. 



1 

AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MONDAY, AUGUST 2, 2021 
10:00 A.M.  

(Virtual Meeting) 
Telecon: (415) 856-9169/Conference ID: 761588683# 

www.ierca.org/calendar 

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF EXECUTIVE ORDER N-25-20 ISSUED BY GOVERNOR GAVIN 
NEWSOM ON MARCH 12, 2020, AND EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20 ISSUED BY GOVERNOR GAVIN 

NEWSOM ON MARCH 17, 2020 ANY BOARD MEMBER MAY CALL INTO THE BOARD MEETING 
WITHOUT OTHERWISE COMPLYING WITH ALL BROWN ACT’S TELECONFERENCE 

REQUIREMENTS. 

TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY FOR THE GENERAL PUBLIC: 
In all efforts to prevent the spread of COVID-19, until further notice, the Inland Empire Regional 

Composting Authority will be holding all Board meetings by teleconferencing. 
The meeting will be accessible at: (415) 856-9169 / Conf Code: 761 588 683# 

This meeting is being conducted virtually by video and audio conferencing. There will be no public location 
available to attend the meeting; however, the public may participate and provide public comment during 
the meeting by calling into the number provided here.  The public may also view the meeting live through 
the Agency’s website.  Alternatively, you may email your public comments to the Recording Secretary 
at  bmarseilles@ieua.org no  later  than 24 hours prior  to  the  scheduled meeting  time. Your comments 
will then be read into the record during the meeting. 

CALL TO ORDER 
OF THE INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING 

FLAG SALUTE 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board; 
however, no action may be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise 
authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code.  Those persons wishing to 
address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to complete 
and submit to the Board Secretary a “Request to Speak” form which are available on the table in the 
Board Room.  Comments will be limited to five minutes per speaker.  Thank you. 



2 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additions to the agenda require 
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a 
unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the 
need for action came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. 

1. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. MINUTES
The Board will be asked to approve the minutes from the May 1, 2021
regular meeting.

B. INVESTMENT AND DISBURSEMENT REPORT
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve for the months of
April 2021 –June 2021:

1. Total disbursements the amount of $2,170,222.46

2. There were no new investments during April 1, 2021 – June 30, 2021

2. INFORMATION ITEMS

A. PROJECT MANAGER’S REPORT

B. TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE QUARTER
ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

C. ASSET MANAGEMENT INTRODUCTION

3. DIRECTOR COMMENTS

Next regular meeting is scheduled for Monday, November 1, 2021 at 10:00 a.m.

4. ADJOURN

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the Recording Secretary (909-993-1500), 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting so 
that the Authority can make reasonable arrangements.



3 

Declaration of Posting 

I, Bonnie Marseilles, Recording Secretary to the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority, hereby certify that a 
copy of this agenda has been posted by 5:30 p.m. at the County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles 1955 Workman 
Mill Road, Whittier, CA and at the IERCA’s Administrative Building, 12645 Sixth Street, Rancho Cucamonga, CA and 
at the IEUA’s main office, 6075 Kimball Ave., Chino, CA on Wednesday, July 28, 2021.

Bonnie Marseilles
  Recording Secretary



           
CONSENT 

CALENDAR 
ITEM 

 
 



 

1 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY (IERCA)  
MAY 3, 2021 

VIA - TELECONFERENCE 
10:00 A.M. 

 
DIRECTORS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 

Jon Blickenstaff, Chairperson 
Paul Hofer, Vice Chairperson 

 Shivaji Deshmukh, Director 
Margaret Finlay, Director 
Robert Ferrante, Director 
Jasmine A. Hall, Director 
 

DIRECTORS ABSENT: 
 None 
 

OTHERS PRESENT via Video/Teleconference: 
 Jeff Ziegenbein, Project Manager, IERCA 

Mike Sullivan, Assistant Project Manager, IERCA  
Christina Valencia, Treasurer, IERCA 

 Marty Cihigoyenetche, General Counsel 
 Christiana Daisy, Deputy General Manager, IEUA  

Randy Lee, Executive Manager of Operations/AGM, IEUA 
 Javier Chagoyen-Lazaro, Manager of Finance and Accounting, IEUA   
 Denise Garzaro, Board Secretary/Office Manager, IEUA 
 Victoria Stone, Recording Secretary, IERCA 
 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the IERCA was held at the Inland Empire Utilities 
Agency Headquarters building located at 6075 Kimball Ave, Chino CA, via 
Video/Teleconference on the above date. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairperson Blickenstaff called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m. and he led the pledge of 
allegiance. A quorum was present.   
 
INTRODUCTIONS 
Chairperson Blickenstaff stated that members of the public may address the Board.  There were 
no persons desiring to address the Board of Directors.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There were no public comments.  
 
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
There were no additions to the agenda.  
 
 



 

2 

INTRODUCTION – RETIREMENT  
Mr. Ziegenbein, introduced Victoria Stone, Recording Secretary, and stated that she will be 
retiring from the Agency/Authority at the end of May.  He stated that Victoria has been the 
Recording Secretary for the Authority since 2004 and staff at the Agency for 32 years. The Board 
congratulated Ms. Stone on her future retirement plans and Mr. Ziegenbein presented Ms. Stone 
with a congratulatory plaque on behalf of the Board. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Upon motion by Director Finlay seconded by Director Hall the motion carried: 
 

 
              M2021-5-1 
 
The Board: 

Approved the Consent Calendar. 
 

1. Minutes from the February 1, 2021, regular meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 

2. The Investment and Disbursement Report as submitted. 
 

 
With the following roll call vote:  

Ayes:  Blickenstaff, Deshmukh, Hofer, Ferrante, Finlay, Hall 
 Noes:  None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstain:  None 
 
ADOPTION OF BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/22 
 
Christina Valencia, IERCA Treasurer, presented the budget for Fiscal Year 2021/22 stating that 
staff is requesting an increase in the tipping fee from $57 to $58 per wet ton of biosolids and a 
capital call of $2 million as needed. She added that there is no change in headcount and most of 
the increase is due to rising costs of energy, labor, and insurance.  
 
Upon motion by Director Finlay, seconded by Director Hall, the motion carried: 
 
            M2021-5-2 
 
The Board: 

Adopted the Inland Empire Regional Composting Authority (IERCA) budget for fiscal 
year 2021/22;  
 
Increased the tipping fee from $57 to $58 per wet ton; and 
 
Approved a capital call of $2 million to be shared equally by the Inland 



 

3 

Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) and Los Angeles County Sanitation Districts (LACSD) 
to support capital improvement project costs and meet the minimum reserve balance, as 
needed. 

 
 
With the following roll call vote:  

Ayes:  Blickenstaff, Hofer, Deshmukh, Ferrante, Hall, Finlay 
 Noes:  None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstain:  None 
 
ANNUAL MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
Mr. Ziegenbein presented the Annual Management plan stating that there are no new changes 
this year. The Plan prioritizes maintaining a safe work environment, maximizing facility 
throughput, maintaining 100% regulatory compliance, maintaining optimal staffing and 
expanding the compost markets by selling all compost at optimum pricing. 
 
Upon motion by Director Finlay, seconded by Director Hofer, the motion carried: 
 

 
            M2021-5-3 
 
The Board: 

Approved the Fiscal Year 2021/22 Annual Management Plan. 
 

 
With the following roll call vote: 

Ayes:  Blickenstaff, Deshmukh, Ferrante, Hofer, Finlay, Hall 
 Noes:  None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstain:  None 

 
MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH RDO EQUIPMENT COMPANY 
 
Mr. Ziegenbein stated that RDO Equipment Company has provided the IERCA with parts and 
service on the John Deere loader fleet and Wildcat trommel screens since the facility began 
operating in 2007. He added that RDO provides parts on consignment at the IERCF warehouse 
increasing parts availability while reducing costs.  RDO provides field service for IERCF 
equipment as needed as well as repairs at their shop in Riverside when necessary. They have 
also provided rental machines at no cost to the IERCA when a loader is down for an extended 
period of time under warranty. Staff is recommending to reduce the contract value as there has 
been a significant reduction in parts and service for the trommel screens since one of the screens 
was replaced in 2020.  
 
Upon motion by Director Finlay, seconded by Director Ferrante, the motion carried: 



 

4 

 
            M2021-5-4 
 
The Board: 

Approved a Master Service Agreement with RDO Equipment Company (RDO) to 
provide parts, service, and equipment rental in support of the IERCF mobile equipment 
fleet and stationery trommel screens from an annual not-to-exceed $325,000.  
 
Authorized the IEUA Manager of Contracts and Procurement to finalize and execute 
the purchase agreement. 

 
 

With the following roll call vote:  
Ayes:  Blickenstaff, Deshmukh, Ferrante, Hofer, Finlay, Hall 

 Noes:  None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstain:  None 
 
 
ADOPTION OF DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT AND INVESTMENT FUND 
SIGNATORY RESOLUTIONS 
 
Ms. Valencia stated that investment fund signatory resolutions have been revised to reflect recent 
changes in the Authority’s authorized signors.  
 
Upon motion by Director Finlay, seconded by Vice Chairperson Hofer, the motion carried: 
 
            M2021-5-5 
 
The Board: 

Adopted Resolution No. 2021-5-1, authorizing and designating signatories for 
depository agreements, depository cards, deposits, transfers, checks, and withdrawal 
of funds.  
 
Adopted Resolution No. 2019-5-2, authorizing participation in the Local Agency 
Investment and designating signatories for the deposit and withdrawal of funds. 

 
 

With the following roll call vote:  
Ayes:  Blickenstaff, Deshmukh, Ferrante, Hofer, Finlay, Hall 

 Noes:  None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstain:  None 
 
ADOPTION OF THE INVESTMENT POLICY FOR FY 2021/22 
 
Ms. Valencia presented the Investment Policy which establishes procedures and guidelines for 
the Authority’s investments.  The Policy encompasses funds over which the Authority  exercises 



 

5 

fiscal control, stipulates allowable and unallowable investment alternatives, and establishes 
parameters for selecting broker/dealers and financial institutions with which the Authority may 
do business.  The Policy also prioritizes the IERCA’s public funds management objectives of 
safety, liquidity, and yield.  
 
Upon motion by Director Finlay, seconded by Director Hall, the motion carried: 
 
 
            M2021-5-6 
 
The Board: 

Adopted Resolution No. 2021-5-3, approving the Authority’s Investment Policy for FY 
2021/22.  
 

 
With the following roll call vote:  

Ayes:  Blickenstaff, Deshmukh, Ferrante, Hofer, Finlay, Hall 
 Noes:  None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstain:  None 
 
COMPOST TRANSPORTATION SERVICE 
 
Mr. Ziegenbein presented a recommendation for compost transportation service agreements 
stating that three contractors; Viramontes Express, Inc., Denali Water Solutions, Inc. and 
Eggleton Trucking, Inc. submitted responsive proposals on March 25, 2021. A review of the 
submittals indicated that Viramontes Express, Inc. and Eggleton Trucking, Inc. were the low 
bidders and that they both have extensive experience hauling compost material for IERCA as 
well as other producers in the region. The current proposed prices represent a slight increase 
compared to previous prices.  Further, Viramontes Express, Inc. has been a Vendor of the Year 
for the IEUA and is also a customer of the IERCA purchasing compost on a regular basis. 
Additionally, Viramontes has specialty equipment such as truck and transfers that allow for 
deliveries to tight quarters like homeowners and small supply yards. Eggleton Trucking, Inc. 
provides farm spreading services which help with compost sales to the agricultural market. 
Viramontes Express, Inc. and Eggleton Trucking, Inc. are best qualified with the lowest price 
and are therefore recommended to be selected as the compost transportation service providers.  
 
Upon motion by Director Finlay, seconded by Director Hall, the motion carried: 
 
            M2021-5-7 
 
The Board: 

Approved a five-year contract with two one-year renewal options with Viramontes 
Express, Inc. and with Eggleton Trucking, Inc. for compost transportation services for 
an annual total of up to $250,000 each; and 
 
Authorized the Project Manager to finalize and execute the contracts.  

 



 

6 

 
With the following roll call vote:  

Ayes:  Blickenstaff, Deshmukh, Ferrante, Hofer, Finlay, Hall 
 Noes:  None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstain:  None 
 
 
PURCHASE OF WHEEL LOADER AND BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 
Mr. Ziegenbein presented a recommendation to purchase a wheel loader and a budget 
amendment cover the costs of procurement.  He stated that staff did a Request for Information 
to determine the latest technology and best options for their equipment to operate effectively in 
the facility.  The information was used to develop specifications for a Request for Proposal. Staff 
reviewed three proposals and selected Liebherr as best value and recommend that the Board 
approve the purchase. Mr. Ziegenbein added that California air rules require equipment upgrades 
and the Liebherr would meet those requirements. After field testing, staff intends to return to the 
Board with a recommendation for fleet replacement in 2022.  
 
 
Upon motion by Director Hall, seconded by Vice Chairperson Hofer, the motion carried: 
 
            M2021-5-8 
 
The Board: 

Approved the purchase of one Liebherr L-566 wheel loader for approximately 
$540,000 including taxes, delivery, warranty; 
 
Approved a budget amendment for $40,000; and, 
 
Authorized the IEUA Manager of Contracts and Procurement to finalize and execute 
the agreement. 
 

 
With the following roll call vote:  

Ayes:  Blickenstaff, Deshmukh, Ferrante, Hofer, Finlay, Hall 
 Noes:  None 
 Absent: None 
 Abstain:  None 
 
PROJECT MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
Mr. Ziegenbein summarized the facility’s throughput levels stating that biosolids levels are at 
approximately 650 wet tons and amendments at 300 wet tons per day representing full capacity.  
He further stated that compost sales volumes are exceeding production volumes. Mr. Ziegenbein 
continued with a COVID-19 update stating that the facility has been operating full production 
while following the CDC guidelines to keep staff healthy.  Mr. Ziegenbein stated that the 
maintenance staff continue to maintain the pugmill mixer and repair outdoor lighting around the 



 

7 

facility. Mr. Ziegenbein added that the facility continues to be closed to the public due to the 
COVID-19 Pandemic therefore, there are no tours of the facility.   
  
Chairperson Blickenstaff left the meeting at 10:52 a.m. 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED           
MARCH 31, 2021  
  
Ms. Valencia presented the Treasurer's Report of Financial Affairs for the quarter ended March 
31, 2021 is hereby submitted in a format consistent with State requirements. As shown in the 
table below, March’s total cash, investments, and restricted deposits equaled $3,265,185 
showing an increase of $860,524 when compared to the December balance of $2,404,661. The 
increase was mainly due to higher biosolids receipt and lower cash outflows for operating and 
administrative expenses.  
 
The Authority’s investment portfolio average rate of return in March 2021(1) was 0.240 percent 
compared to the December 2020 yield of 0.353 percent. As the COVID-19 pandemic continues, 
economic activity remains sluggish and interest rates remain relatively low. Interest earnings for 
the quarter ended March 31, 2021 were $2,617. 
 
DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS 
Chairperson Jon Blickenstaff - None 
Vice Chairperson Paul Hofer - None 
Director Shivaji Deshmukh - None 
Director Margaret Finlay - None 
Director Robert Ferrante - None 
Director Jasmine A. Hall – Stated that she is pleased to be back on the IERCA Board.  
 
With no further business, Chairperson Blickenstaff adjourned the meeting at 10:55 a.m.      
 
 
______________________________ 
Victoria Stone, Recording Secretary 
APPROVED:   August 2, 2021 



           
CONSENT 

CALENDAR 
ITEM 

 
 



���������	
����
�
�
����������� ���
���
����
���
��������������������������

���������� !"#$%" $��"&'($�

)*+,-�

./-�

01/2-�

3456,7+-�

8494:+�;<�=>=?�

@/A/1*5B,�C/*1D�/E�)F1,7+/1:�

GH1F:+FA*�I*B,A7F*�

.1,*:41,1�

JAK,:+2,A+�*AD�)F:541:,2,A+�L,M/1+�

LNGOPPNQ)8.JOQ�

�$�R#�("S'%%" T"T�$UV$�$U"�W'V(T�'X�YR("S$'(#�V&&('!"�X'(�$U"�%' $U#�'X�Z&(R[�\]\̂�_�
à "�\]\̂b�

ĉ�'$V[�TR#da(#"%" $#�R �$U"�V%'a $�'X�e\f̂g]f\\\chic

\c�U"("�j"("� '� "j�R !"#$%" $#�Ta(R k�Z&(R[�̂f�\]\̂�l�̀a "�m]f�\]\̂c

C8GnoLOpQ)�

�U"�Z&(R[�l�̀a "�\]\̂�TR#da(#"%" $�VS$R!R$q�R S[aT"#�SU"Sr� a%d"(#�situ_sgm̂�R �$U"�V%'a $�'X�
ê\if\ûc\s�X'(�!" T'(�&Vq%" $#c�Z�T"$VR["T�[R#$R k�'X�$U"�SU"Sr�("kR#$"(�V T�"["S$(' RS�
TR#da(#"%" $#�vZwxyzR("{�R#�V$$VSU"Tc�

�U"�$'$V[�V%'a $�'X�Zwx�V T�zR("��(V #X"(�&Vq%" $#�R#�e�\f]hmftĝĉsc�

|*}2,A+�.}M,� GH,7~:�
01/2���./�

.1*A:*7+F/A:� ./+*B�82/4A+�

wU"Sr� ��������?� ����� e����?=�<=�?�=��

Zwx� ?��� e�=<>��<����?��

zR("��(V #X"(� ����?� ��e� �����>>�

.O.8�� =?�� ��=<?�><===����

|LJOL�CO8L)�8G.JOQ�

�' "c�

������������������������������ ¡¢£¤ �¥�¤ ¥¤¦§ ���¢§�£¤̈¡�¢



Inland Empire Utilities Agency  Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County 

***** TR_Investment Report 

Investment and Disbursement Report 
August 2, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 

IMPACT ON BUDGET 

The total cash and position of the Authority is reduced as a result of paying authorized 
expenditures.  













































INFORMATION 
ITEM 

 



Inland Empire Utilities Agency                                 Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Date:   August 2, 2021 
 
To:   Honorable Board of Directors 
 
From:   Jeff Ziegenbein 
   Project Manager 
 

Mike Sullivan 
Assistant Project Manager 

 
Subject:  Project Manager’s Report  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
This is an information item for the Board to receive and file. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Operations 
 
The Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility (IERCF) continued to maintain maximum throughput 
levels processing approximately 650 wet tons of biosolids and up to 300 wet tons of amendments daily, 
Monday through Friday each week.   
 
Since the last update, the IERCF staff has: 
 
o Maintained compost sales volumes that match or exceed production volumes. 
o Exceeded projected annual inbound biosolids tonnage by 5,217 wet tons. 
o No permit violations. 
o Exceeded 740 days with no recordable or lost time incidents. 
 
Table 1 lists materials processed for the completed fiscal year (Q1-Q4) 2020/21, July 1, 2020-June 30, 
2021, the same period in the previous fiscal year (Q1-Q4) 2019/2020, and since start-up in April 2007 
through June 30, 2021. 
 
Table 1: Process summary 

 FY 2020/21 FY 2019/20 2007-2021 

Biosolids Processed (wet tons) 150,217 147,606 1,910,104 
Amendments Processed (wet tons) 41,121 42,068 731,656 
Compost Sold (cubic yards) 218,235 232,294 2,998,864 



Project Manager’s Report 
August 2, 2021 
Page 2 of 8 
 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County 
 

 

 

 
 
Safety 
 
The IERCF team just passed two years with no recordable or lost time accidents. This represents over 
100,000 working hours in an industrial setting. They accomplish this by embracing a safe work culture 
and ensuring that their workplace, equipment, and coworkers are safe before beginning any task. An 
appreciation lunch will be presented to staff in the near future.  
  
Industrial work has risks that can be far more serious than other occupations but everything we do, at 
home, in an office, or in a factory like the IERCF, requires a culture of safety to avoid injuries and to keep 
everyone healthy and safe.  
 
Staff Recruitments 
 
IERCF staff are in the process of recruiting for four vacant positions including Administrative Assistant 
II, Office Assistant, and two Compost Operator/Compost Workers.  The team is in the process of 
interviewing candidates and hopes to have all positions filled in the next few months.  
 
 
COVID-19 
 
Staff continues to operate the facility at full capacity while following the guidelines issued by the Centers 
for Disease Control (CDC). The Agency is carefully monitoring regional statistics regarding increased 
positive COVID cases largely due to the Delta variant. The current plan is to return Agency staff to normal 

0.00
2,000.00
4,000.00
6,000.00
8,000.00

10,000.00
12,000.00
14,000.00
16,000.00
18,000.00
20,000.00

IERCF Inbound & Outbound

Biosolids (Inbound) Amendments (Inbound) Compost (Tons Outbound)



Project Manager’s Report 
August 2, 2021 
Page 3 of 8 
 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County 
 

 

schedules by the end of September. There have been no cases of COVID-19 among IERCF staff and staff 
are remaining vigilant to avoid any illness from the virus.  
 
Maintenance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

WSM Trommel Screen Tensioning Upgrade 
 
      
 
The Maintenance Department worked directly with Operations, the screen manufacturer, West Salem 
Machinery (WSM) and Engineering to design, manufacturer and install a custom purpose-built 
tensioning system for the WSM trommel screen. The need to design the new system was clear shortly 
after the initial startup of the newly installed screen. The factory screen cloth design did not incorporate 
a tensioned screen system and after a few hundred hours the standard screen cloths failed. Despite early 
efforts to correct and prolong their life, the design defect clearly required upgrades. WSM warrantied the 
screens and provided a modified system which also failed.   
 
WSM and the IERCF team collaborated on a redesigned tensioning system which was engineered and 
manufactured by WSM and installed by IERCF staff. The system was built using stainless steel and 
includes a fastening system similar to the ones used successfully at the facility for several years. Since 
installing the new system the screen has run without issue. Detailed inspections verify that the new 
system is operating well, and the team expects the screen life to exceed two years.  
 
The screen system has consistently been a bottleneck in the operation of the IERCF and now that Screen 
1 has integrated the new tensioning system, the screen now operates with significantly improved up time 
and greatly minimized pressure on Operations. The team will continue to monitor and maintenance the 
system but thus far are very satisfied with the upgraded system’s performance.  
 
 
 



Project Manager’s Report 
August 2, 2021 
Page 4 of 8 
 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County 
 

 

The following charts show IERCF key performance indicators for the maintenance team: 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



Project Manager’s Report 
August 2, 2021 
Page 5 of 8 
 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County 
 

 

Warehouse Audit – The IERCF warehouse completed an annual audit of its inventory management and 
was verified to be a 99.98% overall accuracy. This exceeds best practices of 97%. The success in the 
system is due to having the following systems in place:  
 

 Parts kitting 
 Cycle counts 
 Parts check out process for emergency parts 

 
 
Outreach 
 
Table 3: Summary of IERCA outreach activities (closed to public due to COVID-19):  
ITEM NUMBER 
IERCF Tours (groups/people) 0  
Garden in Every School 0 
Site visitors (contractors) 97 

 
IERCA staff presented at the Society for Maintenance Reliability Professionals in June 2021. The 
presentation titled “World’s largest enclosed composting facility’s reliability journey” discussed IERCF’s 
progression from reactive maintenance to reliability centered maintenance. The presentation was followed 
by questions and answers and received positive comments.  
 
IERCA staff presented a course on safety and fire prevention at the US Composting Council’s Compost 
Operator Training Course. 
 
Compost Research 
 
The compost research project developed with the Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD) is 
still on hold due to restrictions from the COVID-19 pandemic. Staff and CBWCD continue to check in to 
see when the project will be able to resume and the two groups will work together to provide compost and 
water conservation messaging to the community. It is anticipated that the project can start up in late 
summer of this year. 
 
IERCA provided compost to CBWCD for a community compost giveaway to teach the community about 
the benefits of compost to save water.  
 



Project Manager’s Report 
August 2, 2021 
Page 6 of 8 
 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County 
 

 

  
CBWCD and IERCA Community Compost Giveaway 

 
Sales and Marketing Report  
 
IERCA is proud to announce that it has reached a milestone of 3 million cubic yards in sales as of June 
30, 2021. Staff and special guests gathered for the celebration. Part of the day’s events included a 
commemorative bucket drop of the 3 millionth mark into a truck occupied by a founding IERCA Board 
member John Anderson and his son Jim. After the truck had been loaded, a special scale ticket was then 
presented to the long-time driver which included the unique “3 Million CY” P.O. number. Specially 
designed hats with the SoilPro logo were handed out to guests and staff to celebrate the special day for 
the IERCA and the composting community.  

 
 
 

  
 
   

 
  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

VIPs and IERCA Crew at 3 Millionth Cubic Yard Celebration 
 
Sales have remained consistent with inventory and even increased slightly since the COVID-19 
restrictions were eased. Customers are continuing to purchase significant amounts of material and there is 
currently no inventory as sales are slightly above production capabilities. A large project was awarded in 
May to IECRF and has now started Phase 1, which will drive positive revenue numbers through the hotter 
summer months. There are approximately 100 active customers, and a large percentage of them have 
reported that their number of projects remain stable.  Revenue is still up compared to the same period last 



Project Manager’s Report 
August 2, 2021 
Page 7 of 8 
 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County 
 

 

year as retail and landscape sales have remained high. A major reduction in sales to agriculture is 
anticipated going into fall which will result in higher margins overall. Agriculture unit prices are lower 
than retail and landscaping resulting in an overall higher average unit price.  
 
Compost Procurement for SB1383 
 
Staff members are still working closely with the Association of Compost Producers (ACP) in preparation 
of the implementation of Senate Bill 1383 (SB1383). SB1383 requires organics to be diverted from 
landfills to reduce greenhouse gas emission. It also requires jurisdictions to procure compost based on 
their populations. ACP has developed guidelines to help jurisdictions identify and locate compost products 
that meet the procurement requirements and to better understand how to use compost products. IERCA 
intends to offer SoilPro to member jurisdictions at a discounted price of $3/cubic yard through the end of 
2022. IERCA has provided compost to member cities at no cost as part of a Give Back program for the 
last several years. Surges in sales demand along with SB1383 procurement requirements prompted a 
reevaluation of pricing to jurisdictions.  
 
                                               
 
Table 4: Summary of monthly sales and revenue  

MONTH 
TOTAL YARDS 
2020/2021 

TOTAL YARDS 
2019/2020 

TOTAL REVENUE   
2020/2021 

TOTAL REVENUE   
2019/2020 

April   20,744.21  15,476.33  $46,714.76   $33,831.44  

May  18,722.37  22,655.74  $37,626.06   $55,083.63  

June  18,750.90  20,988.91  $45,525.28   $39,539.26  

TOTAL  58,217.48  59,120.98  $129,866.10  $128,454.33 

AVERAGE  19,405.83  19,706.99  $43,288.70  $42,818.11 

 
The following tables summarize the Authority’s aging reports and sales write off history. 
 
Table 5 

Monthly Accounts Receivable Ageing Report of IERCA (Sales only to third parties) as of 6/30/2021 

  Description Current 
1-30 
Days 

31-60 days 
61-90 
days 

91-120 
days 

>121 
days  

Total 

1 Amount $ 23,558.35 26,632.16 13,907.97 13,947.09 10,485.0 53,298.32 141,828.87 
2 # of Invoices 19 16 9 12 11 50 117 

3  # of Customers 19 16 10 12 11 24 92 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Project Manager’s Report 
August 2, 2021 
Page 8 of 8 
 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency                         Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County 
 

 

Table 6 
Quarterly Accounts Receivable Ageing Report of IERCA (Sales only to third parties)  

Sr. 
# Description 

From FY 
2007/08          

to FY 2019/20 
FY 2020/2021 
(July - June) Total  

1 Sales 6,988,067.58 546.014.41 7,534,081.78  

2 Write off 35,727.52 - 35,727.52  

3 Percentage of Write Off Sales 0.5113%  0.4742% 
 
 
PRIOR BOARD ACTION 
 
None. 
 
IMPACT ON BUDGET 
 
None. 
 
 
 
 
 
  



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

 



���������	
����
�
�
����������������������������������������������������������������
���
����
���
�������

�������������� � ! "��#$�#%#&��'(�� � )(*(+�,-��.(�+/�(0��1+�2�(+"��3+(4��� 56+1"�1*��7�-�*21��� � '+��" +�+�� � � �8 ,9�2������������:;<=>?;<;@>�A<BC;D�CE�FGH=HIG=J�KEE=G;>�EC;�DL<�M?=;D<;�N*/�/��� � O *��P%$�#%#&�� � � � � � � � � � � � � ��QN5RSSNT��'URT��VWX�VYXZ[\YXY][�̂X_̀Ya�̀b�cdeZefdZg�hbbZdY[�b̀Y�aWX�i\ZYaXY�XejXj�klmn�opq�rprs�tu�vm�tmwxyzv{txmv|�daX}�b̀Y�aWX�~̀ZYj][�YX�dX����.�5��QR�T����m�v��xy�vm�n��t{���{v{n��x�nq��n�{txm��o��������s�q�vm��{�n�h\aẀYda�][��e�X[a}Xea��̀gdf����nux|l{txm��x��rprs���o�q�v��nytx�t��tm�nu{znm{�yn�xy{�u�v||��n�ul�zt{{n��{x�znz�nyu�xw�{�n��xvy��wxy�yn�tn������tu�yn�xy{�tm�|l�nu�tm��vy{q�{�n�tm�nu{znm{�{��nuq�tm�nu{znm{�tmu{t{l{txmuq�zv{lyt{���v{nuq�tm�nu{znm{�vzxlm{q��lyynm{�zvy�n{��v|lnq�vm��yv{n�xw�tm{nynu{�nvymtm u��tn|������n��ynvulyny¡u��n�xy{�xw�¢tmvm�tv|�£wwvtyu�wxy�{�n�¤lvy{ny�nm�n��klmn�opq�rprs�tu��nyn���ul�zt{{n��tm�v�wxyzv{��xmutu{nm{��t{���{v{n�yn¤ltynznm{u��£u�u�x�m�tm�{�n�{v�|n��n|x�q�klmn][�{x{v|��vu�q�tm�nu{znm{uq�vm��ynu{yt�{n���n�xut{u�n¤lv|n��¥oqsooq¦�su�x�tm �v��n�ynvun�xw�¥sosqo�����nm��xz�vyn��{x�{�n�§vy����v|vm�n�xw�¥oqr��qs¦�����n��n�ynvun��vu�zvtm|���ln�{x��t �ny��vu��xl{w|x�u�wxy�x�nyv{tm �vm��v�ztmtu{yv{t�n�n̈�nmunu�����n�£l{�xyt{�][�de�X[a}Xea�_̀Yab̀gd̀�Z�XYZ©X�YZaX�̀b�YXa\Ye�de�klmn�rprsª«¬��vu�p�rr¦��ny�nm{��xz�vyn��{x�{�n�§vy���rprs��tn|��xw�p�r�p��ny�nm{��£u��n��n tm�{x�nzny n�wyxz�{�n��®�̄�s°��vm�nzt�q�u�xy{�{nyz�tm{nynu{�yv{nu�ynzvtm�yn|v{t�n|��|x����m{nynu{�nvymtm u�wxy�{�n�¤lvy{ny�nm�n��klmn�opq�rprs��nyn�¥sq°s����� S�+26� O *��±&²� 56�*!�"�0+(4�³+1(+�́ �+��+��x{v|��vu�q��m�nu{znm{uq��nu{yt�{n��̄n�xut{u� ¥oqr��qs¦�� ¥oqsooq¦�s� �¥sosqo�����m�nu{znm{�µxy{wx|tx�£�nyv n��v{n�xw��n{lym� p�r�p¶� p�rr¦�¶� �p�sr¶��ª«¬�·̧¹º»º¼¹�»½¹º�¾¿»�¹Àº�ÁÂ�Ã¿Ä̧¹Å�Æ¿¿ÇºÈ�·̧Éº¼¹Êº̧¹�½¼�¿¾�Ë½Å�ÌÍÌ«����vu��xm��vm����Î��wxy�{�n�zxm{��nm�n��klmn�opq�rprs��vu�ssp��v�u��xz�vyn��{x�{�n�§vy���osq�rprs��Î�xw�ss���v�uq��ln�{x�|x�ny��vu���v|vm�n�vm���t �ny�v�nyv n�zxm{�|���tu�lyunznm{u����n��Î�tu�v�wtmvm�tv|�yv{tx�lun��{x�znvulyn��vu��ynv�t|��v�vt|v�|n�{x��v��n̈�nmunu��£�nyv n��v�u�xw�

ÏÐÑÒÓÔÕÖ�×ÖØÙÚÐÛÙ�ÜÏÝ�ÞßàáâããßäÞåãàäæçàâäåèé×äÏêëÞéàêã×ááç



�����������	�
�������������

���������������������������� !� �����������������������"#����������$#%��!�&�������#��'����� ���� �

(��)��*�)�*+�,��(�-(�-��+���,*���)�.�*�)-/�*+,*��0�-�*(�����*1��1,(�+�(��)��*+�(��)�2�,3�-*���+,3,++�0/�+,�0�1�.*�������(,��+�4,�)��51��,*���*+�(�5,��-�65*�����1(�1++�,*��)����)�1,�/78�9:8;�<=>?@���
���ABCDB�EDFBG�FHICDJ��K�*L��CMAFHI�DJ�ENGOPI��Q)�,*�1����1*+��*��)����)�1,�/78�RSTU8VWUSV�X>YV<>=R>�RS9YU:8U8�V;U�Z��)�1,�/78�YU8UYTU8@����ZVV:9;WUSV[�\YU:8]YUY78�̂UX>YV�><�_RS:S9R:=�Z<<:RY8�<>Y�̀]:YVUY�USaUa�b�*�c	���	�
L�

defghijk�lkmnoepn�qdr�stuvwxxtyszxuy{|uwyz}~lyd��s~u�xlvv|



#DIV/0!

* A Joint Powers Authority

TREASURER'S REPORT OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

the Authority's Investment Policy (Resolution No. 2021‐5‐3), adopted by the Inland Empire
Regional Composting Authority's Board of Directors during its regular meeting held on May 3, 2021.

The funds anticipated to be available during the next six‐month period are expected to be
sufficient to meet all foreseen expenditures during the period.

All investment transactions have been executed in accordance with the criteria stated in



INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Quarter Ended 
June 30, 2021

Unrestricted Accounts June March

$603,377 $586,902

Investments

Citizens Business Bank (CBB) Repurchase (Sweep) $1,250,834 $1,399,970

LA County Pooled Investment $274,556 $274,336

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $1,005,074 $1,003,977
Total Investments $2,530,464 $2,678,283

Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments Available to the Authority $3,133,841 $3,265,185

Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments $3,133,841 $3,265,185

Net Change from previous Quarter ($131,344)

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

1



INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Quarter Ended 
June 30, 2021

Unrestricted Accounts

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Demand (Checking) Accounts $603,377

Subtotal Demand Deposits $603,377

Total Cash and Bank Investment Accounts $603,377

Investments

Citizens Business Bank (CBB) Repurchase (Sweep) $1,250,834
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $1,005,074
LA County Pooled Investment $274,556

$2,530,464

Total Investments $2,530,464

Total Cash, Investments and Restricted Deposits as of June 30, 2021 $3,133,841

Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments as of 6/30/2021 $3,133,841
Less: Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments as of 3/31/2021 $3,265,185

Total Quarterly Increase (Decrease) ($131,344)

2



INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Quarter Ended 
June 30, 2021

Par Principal June % Market
Investments Amount Amount   Amortization  Yield     Value 

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021

Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts

Citizens Business Bank
Checking Account $603,377 $603,377 $603,377 N/A $603,377

Subtotal CBB $603,377 $603,377 $603,377 N/A $603,377

Total Unrestricted Accounts $603,377 $603,377 $603,377 $603,377

Investments

Citizens Business Bank Sweep(1) $1,250,834 $1,250,834 $1,250,834 0.150% $1,250,834

LA County Pooled Investment(2) $274,556 $274,556 $274,556 0.470% $274,556

Local Agency Investment Fund(2) $1,005,074 $1,005,074 $1,005,074 0.260% $1,005,074

Subtotal Investments $2,530,464 $2,530,464 $2,530,464 0.228% $2,530,464

Total Investments $2,530,464 $2,530,464 $2,530,464 $2,530,464

$3,133,841 $3,133,841 $3,133,841 $3,133,841Total Unrestricted Cash and Investments as of June 30, 2021

(1) Citizens Business Bank Sweep rate dropped from 0.20% to 0.15% on May 12, 2021. 
(2) Interest Rate information from LA County Pooled Investment as of May 2021.

3



INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY
Cash and Investment Summary

 Quarter Ended 
June 30, 2021

Unrestricted Accounts
Cash, Bank Deposits, and Bank Investment Accounts Amount Invested Yield

FoCitizens Business Bank - Sweep Account(1) $1,250,834 0.150%

LA County Pooled Investment(2) $274,556 0.470%

Local Agency Investment Fund(2) $1,005,074 0.260%
$2,530,464 0.228%

     Bank Accounts
Citizens Business Bank -Demand Account $603,377 N/A

$603,377

Total Portfolio $3,133,841

Investment Portfolio Rate of Return 0.184%

Restricted/Transitory/Other Demand Accounts Amount Invested Yield

Total Other Accounts $0 0.000%

Total Authority Directed Deposits $3,133,841

(2) Interest Rate information from LA County Pooled Investment as of May 2021.

(1) Citizens Business Bank Sweep rate dropped from 0.20% to 0.15% on May 12, 2021. 

4



INLAND EMPIRE REGIONAL COMPOSTING AUTHORITY
Cash Position
 Quarter Ended 
June 30, 2021

273492

$0.0

$0.5

$1.0

$1.5

$2.0

$2.5

$3.0

$3.5

$4.0

$4.5

$5.0

Jun‐20 Sep‐20 Dec‐20 Mar‐21 Jun‐21

M
ill
io
n
s

CBB Checking & Sweep Account LAIF Investments LA County Pooled Investment

Total	Cash,	Investments and	 Restricted	Deposits

5



INFORMATION 
ITEM 

 



IERCF Asset Management Overview

Ken Monfore

Manager of Asset Management

Aug 2, 2021

Agenda

• What is Asset Management

• History (military, private, public)

• Where are we & how do we compare?

• Keys to Closing the Gap



What is Asset Management (AM)?

Doing the right projects, at the right cost, at 

the right time.

Asset Management is an integrated set of 

processes that minimize the lifecycle costs 

of owning, operating, and maintaining 

assets, at an acceptable level of risk, while 

continuously delivering established levels 

of service now and for the future.

Definition

Le
ve

lo
f 

Se
rv

ic
e

COMPREHENSIVE ASSET 
MANAGEMENT

R
ISK

C
ost of 

Service

2



Brief History of Asset Management (AM)

History: 
• Government: Military/FAA

IEUA: Mission / Vision / Values

• We are public stewards 
who provide Water, 
Treated Wastewater, & 
Compost

• How we do it
− Safely
− Compliantly
− Reliably
− Sustainably (Cost effective & 

environmentally conscious)

• Private 

• Public

3



Setting Policy and Direction

Capital Project and Maintenance Planning

Asset Life Cycle Decision Making

Project, Operations and Maintenance Delivery

Asset Monitoring and Performance

Quality and Risk Assurance Practices

Organization

Data and Information Management

Technology/Systems and Tools

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Where are we on our AM Journey? 

4

How do we compare with others?

IEUA



Keys to Closing the Gap

Longest - Purpose 
of investment

Most crucial for Reliability Don’t forget 
this phase

Not $1 more of public 
money than necessary

5



Collaborative Effort

6

Maint

HR

Fin

Engr

EA

Comp 
/ RM

Ops

CAP

IT/BIS

Plan

“Operational Excellence is when each 
person knows where they fit within 
Asset Reliability” 

– Dave Reiber



AM Maintenance Philosophies

• Run to Failure (RTF)
- History
- Applicability
- Intentional

• Corrective Maintenance (CM) & 
Preventive Maintenance (PM)

• Predictive Maintenance (PdM)

7

~ $130,000

7



Predictive Maintenance (PdM)

Medical
Analogy

8



Condition Assessment (CA):

9

Risk Evaluation & Project Prioritization



Challenge & Parting Thoughts

It is a journey…AND…the road is long. Remember Toyota

30 years

• The key is to build and maintain a culture of continual improvement

• This is a journey – marathon, not a sprint (long term over short term gain)

Toyota Way 
(2 keys) {

10


	Agenda 1
	Agenda 2
	Consent A
	Consent B
	Information A
	Information B
	Information C



